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Plaiutiff, Judge Harry D. Leinenweber 
Magistrate Judge Maria Valdez 

v. 

YELLOW PAGE MARKETING B.V., a foreigu 
corporation, also doing business as YELLOW 
PAGE B.V. and YELLOW PAGE 
(NETHERLANDS) BY, 

YELLOW PUBLISHING LTD., a foreigu 
corporation, 

PUBLISHING 
corporation, 

LTD., a foreigu 
corporation, and 

JAN MARKS, individually and as owner, officer, 
or director of YELLOW P AGE MARKETING 
B.Y., 

Defendants. 
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COMPLAINT FOR PERMANENT INJUNCTION 
AND OTHER EOUITABLE RELIEF 

? 11 

Plaintiff, tbe Federal Trade Commission ("FTC"), for its Complaint alleges: 

1. The FTC brings tbis action under Section 13(b) oftbe Federal Trade Commission 

Act ("FTC Act"), 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), to obtain temporary, preliminary, and permanent injunctive 

relief, rescission or refonnation of contracts, restitution, tbe refund of monies paid, disgorgement 

of 



JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

2. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 1337(a), 

and 1345, and 15 U.S.C. §§ 45(a) and 53(b). 

3. Venue is proper in this district under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b), (c), and (d), and 15 

U.S.C. § 53(b). 
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 u t e 0 . 0 3 5  T c  1 0 . 6 1 8  0 0  0  1 1 . 4  1 4 1 . 0 9  6 1 . 7 2 7 u e 1 6 . 3 3 ( b ) E T 
 B T 
 / S u s p e c t  < < / C o n f  0  > > B D C  
 / T 1 _ 1  1  T f 
 0 . 0 3 0 7  T c  . 6 1 8  0 0  6 6 
 ( U n i 1 4 1 . 0 9  6 2 5 . 6 3 u e 1 6 . 3 3 ( b ) ) T j 
 c M C  
 E T 
 B T 
 / T 1 _ 1  1  T f 
 - 0 . 0 3 5  T c  1 0 . 9 6 3 7  0  0  1 1 . 4  1 9 1 . 2 7  6 6 7 . 8 5 u e 1 6 . 3 3 ( b ) 7  Td
ue16.33(b)41-58MC 
ET
BT
/T1_1 1 Tf
0 Tc 11. 11.4 0 0 11.4 142.1 52 0 16 e16.33(b)
0.0242 Tc 1.931 0 Td
(FTC )Tj
-0.0183Tc 16787 0 T20/a e 1 6 . 3 3 ( b ) 4 5

a n  a n  i 1  0 4 . 3 2 ( a n d  ) T j 
 c t . 0 2 9 5  T c  7 3 9  0  T 8 
 / b)0.0145 Tc 08621 00 11.4 335.87 634.33 490.05(b)or0242 Tc 19631 0 T10/i s  

v i o 2 5 4 0 1 8 3 T c  ) i 1  0 - 3 6 T d 
 T c  1 1 . 4 < o f c . d c  9 9 i 1  0  S t a t e s  A c T j c e e d 
 n g s 9 T P e 1  0 4 . 6 3 4 5 2 6 r h 4 2  T c  1 9 6 3 1  0  T 1 0 / 4 .  5 . v i o 2 5 4 0 1 8 3 T c  ) i 1  0 - 3 d 
  6 r e j 
 / T 1 _ . �  T c  3 . 7 2 l c  T c  0 5 4 9  0  T 8 2 T 0 4 . 6 3 4 5 3 ( b Ý . 8 7  6 5 9 7 8 2 . 0 2 4 2  T c  1 j 
 0 . 0 5  T c 1  0 7 9 a  1 1 . 4  3 1 2  5 5  0  1 1 . 4  6 9 . 8 3  6 3 
 ( P 2 5 u e 1 2 3 1  0 4 ( P 2 8 5 t 0 . 0 2 4 2  T c  1 . 9 3 n u e D I C 2 6  T C  ) T j 
 - 0 . 0 1 8 3 5 m 
 ( 0 4 ( P 2 8 5 t 0 . 0 2 c o n t ) 0 .  ) T j e n j o 0 . 0 c  1 1 . 4   0  1 _ . �  T c  3 t i ) E T 1 1 . ,  T c  1 . 9 3 1  0  T 5 4 4 3 1  0 / 4 .  5 . ) a t e s  A c t 0 1 0 0 u e D I C 2 6 3 9 7 7 
 0 . 0 5  T c 1  u n d  T c  1 1 . 4  0  0  1 1 . 4  3 2 4 . 6 9  1 1 . 7 2 9  6 7 9  3 8 4 8 8 . 
 0 . 0 2 4 2  T c  1 . 9 3 1  0  T 8 9 9  T C  b)

b)
0.0242 Tc 1.931090 T546 TC b )2  0 ( A ) 1 6 . 3 3 8 3  T 0 C  
 E T 
 B T 
 2 1 0  T 2 
 ( i s 3 5 . 8 7  6 3 4 5 1 8 6 6 . 3 3 3 5 6 0 6 1 3 . 0 2 D E F E N D A N T S 6 . 3 3 8 3  T c  0 1 . 4  1 3 4  S u s p e c t  < < 5 0 2 . 1  5 5 0 . 0 4 6  6 8 8 . . 3 3  8 . 2 4 2  . 0 2 6 . e s  b 
 . 0 1 8 3 0  T 8 9 9  T C  ) T j 
 - 0 . 0 1 8 3 T c 6 . 4 3  8 . 2 4 2  . 0 2 D e f e n d a j 
 / T 1 _ 0  1 r 3 3 ( b )  ) 1 5 3 ( b � Y e l l o w b )

v i ( " Y e l l o w v i b u s i n e s s 7  T c  1 1 . 4  0  0  1 1 . 4 9 9 3 2 . 1  5 5 0 . 0 4 6 5 1 8 ) 7 6 3  8 . 2 4 2  . 0 2 a C  
 /



8. Defendant Yellow Data Services Ltd. ("Yellow Data") is a foreign corporation 

with its principal place of business at 145-157 St. John Street, London, United Kingdom. 

Yellow Data transacts or has transacted business in this district and throughout the United States. 

9. Jan Marks ("Marks") is an owner, officer, or director of Yellow Page. At all 

times material to this Complaint, acting alone or in concert with others, he has formulated, 

directed, controlled, had the authority to control, or participated in the acts and practices set forth 

in this Complaint. Defendant Marks, in com1ection with the matters alleged herein, transacts or 

has transacted business in this district and throughout the United States. 

10. Defendants Yellow Page, Yellow Publishing, and Yellow Data (collectively, 

"Corporate Defendants") have operated as a common enterprise while engaging in the deceptive 

acts and practices alleged below. Defendants have conducted the business practices described 

below through an interrelated network of companies that have common ownership, managers, 

and business functions, that operate a common scheme, and that commingle funds. Because 

these Corporate Defendants have operated as a common enterprise, each of them is jointly and 

severally liable for the acts and practices alleged below. Defendant Marks has formulated, 

directed, controlled, had the authority to control, or participated in the acts and practices of the 

Corporate Defendants that constitute the cormnon enterprise. 

COMMERCE 

11. At all times material to this Complaint, Defendants have maintained a substantial 

course of trade in or affecting commerce, as "commerce" is defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, 

15 U.S.C. § 44. 
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DEFENDANTS' BUSINESS ACTIVITIES 

12. Since at least 2009, Defendants have engaged in a plan, 





19. Upon receiving Defendants' invoices, many consumers pay, mistakenly believing 

that Defendants are the publisher, or are affiliated with the publisher, of the local yellow page 

directory with which the consumers have an existing relationship. 

20. In numerous instances, however, consumers realize that the invoice is for a new 

service that they did not order and do not want. These consumers refuse to pay the invoice and 

often return it with a note indicating that the listing was never ordered and should be canceled. 

Many consumers even explain to Defendants that the person who updated the infonnation and 

signed the form did not have the authority to enter into contracts or purchase services on behalf 

of the business. Defendants often respond by telling consumers that the order cannot be 

canceled, as the cancellation period runs only from "the date of signing the order fonn [to 1 the 

date of billing the invoice." Defendants also warn these consumers that by returning the original 

fax solicitation, they entered into a legally binding contract that Defendants intend to enforce. 

21. Consumers who persist in refusing to pay subsequently receive additional faxes 

from Defendants, purporting to assess late fees on the amounts allegedly owed, and threatening 

to refer the alleged debts to a collection agency and to harm consumers' credit ratings. In some 

instances, consumers end up paying Defendants for the unordered listing simply to put an end to 

this harassment. 

VIOLATIONS OF THE FTC ACT 

22. Section Sea) ofthe FTC Act, IS U.S.C. § 4S(a), prohibits "unfair or deceptive acts 

or practices in or affecting commerce." 

23. Misrepresentations or deceptive omissions of material fact constitute deceptive 

acts or practices prohibited by SectionS(a) of the FTC Act. 
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COUNT I 

24. In numerous instances in connection with the offering for sale or sale of Internet 

directory listings, Defendants have represented, directly or indirectly, expressly or by 

implication, that consumers have a preexisting business relationship with Defendants. 

25. In truth and in fact, in numerons instances in which Defendants have made the 

representation set forth in Paragraph 24 of this Complaint, consumers do not have a preexisting 

business relationship with Defendants. 

26. Therefore, Defendants' representation as set forth in Paragraph 24 of this 

Complaint is false and misleading and constitutes a deceptive act or practice in violation of 

Section 5(a) of the FTC d e c e p t i v e  



CONSUMER INJURY 

31. Consumers have suffered and will continue to suffer substantial injury as a result 

of Defendants' violations of the FTC Act. In addition, Defendants have been unjustly enriched 

as a result of their unlawful acts or practices. Absent injunctive relief by this Court, Defendants 

are likely to continue to injure consumers, reap unjust enrichment, and harm the public interest. 

THIS COURT'S POWER TO GRANT RELIEF 

32. Section 13(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. § 53(b), empowers this Court to grant 

injunctive and such other relief as the Court may deem appropriate to halt and redress violations 

of any provision of law enforced by the FTC. The Court, in the exercise of its equitable 

jurisdiction, may award ancillary relief, including rescission or refonnation of contracts, 

restitution, the refund of monies paid, and the disgorgement of ill-gotten monies, to prevent and 

remedy any violation of any provision of law enforced by the FTC. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

Wherefore, Plaintiff FTC, pursuant to SectionI3(b) of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.c. § 53(b) 

and the Court's own equitable powers, requests that the Court: 

A. Award Plaintiff such preliminary injunctive and ancillary relief as may be 

necessary to avert the likelihood of consumer injury during the pendency of this action and to 

preserve the possibility of effective final relief, including, but not limited to, temporary and 

preliminary injunctions and an order freezing assets; 

B. Enter a permanent injunction to prevent future violations of the FTC Act by 

Defendants; 

C. Award such relief as the Court finds necessary to redress injury to consumers 

resulting from Defendants' violations of the FTC Act, including, but not limited to, rescission or 
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reformation of contracts, restitution, the refund of monies paid, and the disgorgement of ill-

gotten monies; and 

D. Award Plaintiff the costs of bringing this action, as well as such other and 

additional relief as the Court may determine to be just and proper. 


